THE KILLING OF JONBENET:  AN EVIL TWIST  Script      29.11.06
	Lib:  Pageant Queen footage
	LIB: CHILD PAGEANT FOOTAGE SYNC

	
	

	
	…pageant footage…

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	JonBenét Ramsey at five.    Months after this video was taken, she was dead.

	house
	

	
	She was murdered in her parents’ home in Colorado on Christmas Night 1996.

	
	

	
	She was taken from her bedroom

	
	down into the basement 

	
	where she was tortured and garrotted to death.

	
	

	Lib: body out of house                        

	Local police assumed the parents were guilty and the US media openly accused them of the killing.

	Rostrom:  tabloids etc.
	

	                 Vanity Fair                                      
	They became the most reviled couple in America.

	
	 

	Tracey in studio                                               
	But in 1998 British media academic Michael Tracey made a Channel 4 documentary which revealed that almost everything America had been told about the murder, was untrue.

	
	

	Lib:  parents outside church                
	And that the parents were probably innocent.

	
	

	
	That was back in 1998.   And that is how it might have stayed.

	
	

	Lib  Bangkok press sync
	LIB: JOHN KARR SYNC

	
	

	
	…sync efx…

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	But suddenly, this summer, an American was arrested in Bangkok.    In an astonishing series of e-mails and phone calls to Michael Tracey, he had confessed to the murder.

	
	

	reconstruction of telephone call
	MARK KARR TELEPHONE CALL WT

	
	

	tape recorder                                                                    
	I, I knew I had to strike with a force that was so intense… It’s so horrible Michael.   There’s nothing more horrible than this.   There’s nothing more horrible, my God you can’t imagine.   (Crying).


	Tracey on phone


	COMM

	Lib:  aerial night shots
	Tonight, the untold story behind this year’s extraordinary developments in the Ramey murder case.

	
	

	
	And the growing crisis they reveal in American justice.

	freeze
	

	Super Title:   JonBenét Ramsey – An Evil Twist                
	WT

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	Michael Tracey teaches at the University of Colorado, just half a mile from where JonBenét was murdered.    

	
	

	mix to mountain shots
	WT

	
	

	                                                                  music
	…efx…

	
	

	ext of Tracey home
	new e-mail tone…

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	In 2002, at his home in the Rockies, he began receiving e-mails from a man who had seen the  documentary.   

	
	

	
	Tracey was getting a lot of other e-mails on the case but these – signed December Man – immediately caught his attention.

	
	

	Michael Tracey sync
	MICHAEL TRACEY SYNC

	
	

	
	They were long but buried inside the e-mails were little, were strange references; strange comments that seemed to me to me to be suggesting that he knew something about the case that was unusual.

	
	

	cu of screen – words from e-mail
	2ND VOICE

	
	

	Xa It was never a kidnapping attempt, Michael.   Never.  
	It was never a kidnapping attempt, Michael.   Never.

	
	

	Xb Her death was a ritual and every detail is harboured by her killer.
	Her death was a ritual and every aspect is harboured by her killer.


	Michael Tracey at home sync  
	MICHAEL TRACEY SYNC

	
	

	
	It was hinting.   He was suggesting.   He was sort of saying “Listen to me.   Listen carefully”.   And it was it was it very quickly became weird but weirdly interesting.

	
	

	cu of screen – words from e-mail
	2ND VOICE

	
	

	1b JonBenet was sacrificed so than an element of truth might be shed on  her killer’s psyche. ?
	JonBenét was sacrificed so than an element of truth might be shed on her killer’s psyche.

	
	

	1d The perpetrator had no fear… time was on his side.  
	The perpetrator had no fear while he was there… time was on his side. 

	
	

	Michael Tracey at computer
	COMM

	
	

	
	Whoever was e-mailing Tracey, wanted him to forward a message to the Ramseys.

	
	

	cu of screen – words from e-mail
	2ND VOICE

	
	

	Xc Patsy, please, I beg thee, listen to a man who has a connection with your daughter as no other can have
	Patsy, please, I beg thee, listen to a man who has a connection with your daughter as no other can have

	
	

	Lib:  Ramseys walking in woods
	COMM

	
	

	
	As the e-mails began in 2002 – the Ramseys were living in Atlanta where Patsy had grown up. 

	
	They had spent almost everything on defending themselves but were still together, with their son Burke.   They tried to ignore the media:  which had had already made up its mind and found them guilty.  

	
	

	
	JOHN RAMSEY V/O

	
	

	
	We just shut it out of our lives.   We did not take a newspaper.   We took out cable television.

	
	

	John Ramsey sync
	JOHN RAMSEY SYNC

	
	

	
	but the problem was, our friends would call us and and they’d see js… ‘Did you see what was on television last night?   I can’t believe what they said about you’.    And they would repeat it.     And so it… it kinda defeated our purpose of kinda shutting it out.  

	
	


	Lib:  Geraldo Cyril Wecht. Nov 97
	LIB:  CYRIL WECHT SYNC

	        Geraldo Rivera
	

	
	I think charges should be brought against both of the Ramseys and I think the police should do with them what they would do with Mr. and Mrs. Jones and Mr. and Mrs. Smith.   You play one against the other and you move towards the truth, that’s what you do.  (Clapping).

	
	

	Lib:  Dateline sync
	LIB:  DATELINE SYNC

	
	

	
	Vanity Fair says the Boulder police are so sure that they’ve had arrest affidavits drawn up since May. 

	
	

	
	They list evidence against the two parties in specific detail.   

	
	

	
	For what?

	
	

	
	For murder.

	
	

	
	JOHN RAMSEY V/O

	
	

	
	We clearly expected to be arrested

	
	


	John Ramsey sync
	JOHN RAMSEY SYNC

	
	

	                                                 
	Our attorneys told us that we would be put in a cell and quite likely, there would be someone else in the cell with us.   And that we should be very cautious of that person, that quite likely it was an informant.   And there were very concerned about an informant sating that we had confessed to them.    So we were told we mustn’t say a word to anyone.

	
	


	late afternoon ext of Mike’s home in mountains
	WT

	
	

	                                                               fd up music
	…music……tone indicating arrival of new e-mail…

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	The e-mails to Michael Tracey would add a new dimension to the Ramsey’s suffering.   

	
	

	
	Early in 2003, they became darker.

	
	

	
	The man sending them claimed to have been in the Ramsey home and that he was in some way connected to the murder. 


	cu of screen – words from e-mail
	2ND VOICE

	
	

	1a On my last visit to her home, I remembered the sweetness of JonBenet's laughter.
	On my last visit to her home, I remembered the sweetness of JonBenet's laughter.

	
	

	1c She ‘played rough’.    She was no ‘sugar and spice’ girl.   She did not break easily. 
	She ‘played rough’.    She was no ‘sugar and spice’ girl.   She did not break easily.

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	Whoever was sending them also began talking about why he wanted to contact her parents.

	
	

	Michael Tracey sync
	MICHAEL TRACEY SYNC

	
	

	
	What he was suggesting was that he was having this love affair with JonBenét.    And that, that came out in the early e-mails.   And it became a very strong theme.   But he wanted to say to John and Patsy and I think in particular Patsy,‘ You know, please forgive me for what I did.   And I love your daughter.   I didn’t mean to hurt her, to kill her.   I was in love with your daughter’.   I mean, it was very strange.   It was a very strange kind of message that he was sending.  But he wanted to talk to them.

	
	

	cu of screen – words from e-mail
	2ND VOICE  

	
	

	2bThe killer loved her.   He made love through killing her.
	The killer loved her.  He made love through killing her.

	
	

	2c He is mortified that his violent passion has culminated in the death of the very object of his love.
	He is mortified that his violent passion has cul- minated in the death of the very object of his love.

	
	

	Michael Tracey sync
	MICHAEL TRACEY SYNC

	
	

	
	Reading these e-mails, I did not know what I was dealing with, you know, whether this was a total loon, total nutcase or someone who was potentially a killer of a child.   

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	Michael Tracey would find answering this, a harrowing experience.

	End of Part 1
	


	Part 2
	

	late afternoon ext of Mike’s home in mountains
	WT

	
	

	                                                               fd up music
	…music……tone indicating arrival of new e-mail…

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	Early in 2003 the man sending e-mails to British academic Michael Tracey began claiming he had some connection with the Ramsey murder. 

	
	

	
	Tracey did not know whether the claim was real – or just fantasy.

	
	

	Michael Tracey sync
	MICHAEL TRACEY SYNC

	
	

	
	And it seemed to me the sensible thing to do was to ask someone who knows about serious homicide.

	
	

	Boulder police station
	COMM

	
	

	
	In the 1998 Channel 4 documentary Tracey had criticised the Boulder Police for the way they had conducted the investigation –  so for advice, he turned instead, to the most experienced murder detective he could find.      

	Lib:  Lou Smit establisher
	

	
	Lou Smit has investigated over 200 murders and solved 90 per cent of them.   

	
	

	
	He had been called in to advise local police on the Ramsey case – but later resigned because of the way they were handling it.    

	
	

	
	His advice now, to Michael Tracey, was clear.

	
	

	
	LOU SMIT V/O

	
	

	
	From the e-mails

	
	

	Lou Smit sync
	LOU SMIT CONT SYNC

	
	

	                                                        
	there was an indication that this man, initially, was trying to confess to the murder of JonBenét. 

	
	

	Lib:  John and Patsy Ramsey
	LOU SMIT V/O

	
	

	
	What I also found concerning was that he wanted to confess to Patsy and John Ramsey, that he had committed this murder.    That’s really unusual.


	Lou Smit sync
	LOU SMIT CONT SYNC

	
	

	
	So I encouraged it very much that Michael continue e-mailing this person and to try to ascertain his identity. 

	
	

	Michael Tracey sync
	MICHAEL TRACEY SYNC

	
	

	
	I listened to Lou. You know, I have enormous respect for Lou Smit he’s a great detective. And so I thought OK, I’m going to try to find out who this person is.

	
	

	Tracey at computer, late afternoon shot
	MICHAEL TRACEY V/O

	
	

	
	The e-mails continued and the more I read, the more intrigued I became.

	
	

	cu of words on screen 
	2ND VOICE

	
	

	3a JonBenet’s killer is not a serial killer.    He is a serial lover.
	JonBenet’s killer is not a serial killer.    He is a serial lover.

	
	

	3c  Urgency would convert  everything into the tragedy it became. 
	Urgency would convert everything into the tragedy it became.

	
	

	Michael Tracey at home cont sync
	MICHAEL TRACEY SYNC

	
	

	
	He was very intense.   He seemed desperate to  communicate something about what happened that night, he seemed desperate to talk   


	Charlevoix establisher
	MICHAEL TRACEY V/O

	
	

	
	to the Ramseys.

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	By now, in 2003, the Ramseys had moved to Charlevoix in Michigan, near the Canadian border, and close to where John Ramsey had grown up.

	
	

	John and Patsy Ramsey’s house                                     
	Nobody would employ him – so he began renovating their home here.  

	
	

	
	Their position, though, was improving.    

	      
	

	
	A Grand Jury had already decided there was insufficient evidence to indict them:    

	Lib:  (News) /Rostrom seq:  cuts/decision


	but now in a related case, a Federal Judge concluded that there was no evidence they had killed their daughter and a lot of evidence that an intruder had done so.

	
	

	Lib  rostrom still of John and Patsy       
	The judge criticised local police and FBI officers for having run a campaign against the couple.

	
	

	
	JOHN RAMSEY V/O

	
	

	                                                                                              
	We couldn’t have asked

	
	

	John Ramsey cont sync
	JOHN RAMSEY CONT SYNC

	
	

	
	for a stronger or more significant decision at that point.   Because you know, we’d never been, we never had been given the opportunity to present our case in a court of law and in front of a jury.   So this was as close as we ever got to ever addressing the charge that that would’ve  

	
	


	Lib:  night tracks through branches at house
	JOHN RAMSEY V/O

	
	

	
	been brought against us by the police.

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	The judgement exposed the myths that had condemned the parents:

	  
	for example, that no intruder could have got in because there were no footprints in the snow.

	
	

	Lib:  (police pics, no snow)                               
	Crime scene photographs show there was no snow cover that night.

	
	

	Lib:   night tracks through branches      
at house  
	Another myth was that there was no evidence of a break in.

	
	

	Lib:  (police pics, disturbance/suitcase)            
	Police photographs show clear evidence of one.

	
	

	Lib   night tracks through                     

branches at house 
	And the biggest myth:   that Patsy Ramsey killed JonBenét by accident and then staged a kidnapping to cover it up.

	
	

	Lib:  autopsy/garrotte pics                     
	The post mortem on JonBenét disproves this.   She had been tortured and garrotted to death.

	Lib:  Boulder police cars
	

	
	District Attorney Mary Lacy 

	
	took the case away from the Boulder police and set up a new investigation.

	
	

	
	JOHN RAMSEY V/O

	
	

	
	Our objective almost from the beginning was to get the case moved out of the Boulder Police hands.   They were grossly incompetent.

	
	

	John Ramsey sync
	JOHN RAMSEY SYNC

	
	

	
	So when Mary took the case over, took it directly, we were thrilled.  .   


	Lib: Lou entering justice centre  
	COMM

	
	

	                                                                         11.53
	Lou Smit was asked to lead the new investigation.       

	
	

	                                                                         11.56
	As it began, detectives urged Tracey to continue trying to find out who was e-mailing him.

	
	

	                                                                         12.03
	Meanwhile they themselves made an astonishing discovery.

	Lib:  DNA tests
	

	                                                                          12.07
	Local police had missed the most vital clue of all:  the killer had left his DNA.

	                                                                           
	

	
	

	                                                                           12.12
	It was the DNA of an unknown white male.   It did not belong to anyone in the Ramsey family.    

	
	

	afternoon  ext of Mike’s home in the mountains
	WT

	
	

	
	…music… tone indicating new e-mail…

	
	

	words on screen 
	2ND VOICE WT

	
	

	4a JonBenét’s killer has no DNA on file and is not a registered sex offender, therefore e the authorities are barking up the wrong tree.
	JonBenét’s killer has no DNA on file and is not a registered sex offender, therefore the authorities are barking up the wrong tree.

	
	

	
	MIKE TRACEY V/O

	
	

	
	He was clearly aware

	
	

	Mike Tracey cont sync
	MIKE TRACEY CONT SYNC

	
	

	
	that a lot of people thought the DNA was important.   And one of the things that he seemed to me to be suggesting, in fact, more than suggesting, stating, was that the DNA was not an issue.   It… it wasn’t… going to solve the crime.

	
	

	afternoon cu of fingers cuing  opening of e-mails
	CU OF FINGERS CURING E-MAIL SYNC 

	
	

	
	efx

	
	

	
	MIKE TRACEY V/O

	
	

	
	And then he started to 

	
	

	Mike Tracey cont sync
	MIKE TRACEY CONT SYNC

	
	

	
	tell me that he himself had been under investigation for a serious crime.   So, he started to reveal himself to a certain extent.

	
	

	cu of computer screen
	2ND VOICE 

	
	

	4c I was not only investigated for the murder of JonBenet Ramsey but for other child murders as well.       
	I was not only investigated for the murder of JonBenét Ramsey but for other child murders as well.       

	
	

	4c But  no  DNA sample taken from me.
	But no DNA sample was taken from me

	
	

	Michael Tracey at home cont sync
	MICHAEL TRACEY SYNC

	
	

	
	The exchanges became a kind of struggle.   He knew I was trying to find out more.    

	
	

	afternoon cu of Tracey typing
	WT

	
	

	
	…typing efx…

	
	

	
	MICHAEL TRACEY V/O

	
	

	
	And the more I pushed, the more he began to resist.

	
	

	
	WT

	
	

	
	…tone announcing new e-mail

	
	

	switch to afternoon opening of new e-mail 
	…efx…

	
	

	words on screen 
	2ND VOICE WT

	
	

	5a I am terrified to talk to you.    I am afraid that you are communicating with law enforcement.
	I am terrified to talk to you.   I am afraid that you are communicating with law enforcement

	
	

	Michael Tracey at home sync
	MICHAEL TRACEY SYNC

	
	

	
	The more he withdrew, the more interesting he became.   Because why is he withdrawing?

	
	

	words on screen 
	2ND VOICE

	
	

	5b Talking to you about JonBenet is probably the most dangerous thing  I can do.   
	Talking to you about JonBenét is probably the most dangerous thing I can do.

	lose words on screen – blank screen 
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	Early in 2004, after 18 months, the e-mails suddenly stopped.   

	
	

	
	MICHAEL TRACY V/O

	
	

	
	There was a certain sense of thank God he’s gone.   But I was also worried


	Michael Tracey at home sync
	MICHAEL TRACEY SYNC

	
	

	                                                                fd up music

                                                             
	what if this guy really did know what happened?   And what if this guy was the person that killed her?   Because that’s what he’d been hinting, he’d been hinting something like.   And then when he goes, you wonder, ‘Well what was that about?’

	
	

	darker establisher of Charlevoix
	WT

	
	

	
	music

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	As the e-mails stopped, in Charlevoix, Michigan, life for the Ramseys had taken a turn for the worst.

	
	

	Lib: Patsy at apartment block            
	Before the murder of her daughter Patsy had had ovarian cancer.  It had now returned.

	
	

	
	JOHN RAMSEY V/O

	
	

	
	Well it was a shock

	
	

	John Ramsey cont sync
	JOHN RAMSEY CONT SYNC

	
	

	
	because she’d been in remission for nine years and had really just thought it was done and she would go back once a year for a check up and was just floored when she found that there was a small spot We, , she addressed it in her normal optimistic way, lets take care of this and get on with life.

	
	

	Lib:  Patsy on phone
	COMM

	
	

	
	Patsy Ramsey’s new fight with ovarian cancer was widely reported.     This brought an unexpected development.

	
	

	early evening  ext Tracey house ext
	WT

	
	

	
	…music……tone indicating new e-mail…

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	In the Autumn of 2005 the e-mails to Michael Tracey started again.

	
	

	Michael Tracey sync
	MICHAEL TRACEY SYNC

	
	

	
	I remember turning my computer on one day and bringing up my e-mail file and bang, he’s back.       

	
	

	words on screen 
	2ND VOICE WT

	
	

	6a I am so sorry to hear that JonBenet's mother is dying.


	I am so sorry to hear that JonBenet's mother is dying.

	
	

	Michael Tracey sync
	MICHAEL TRACEY SYNC

	
	

	
	He came back with a vengeance.  When the e-mails started to flow they were constant.   And they were intense.     And they were darker.   And he starts to confess essentially.   He says, there’s no more ifs and or buts about this. He’s saying ‘I did it. I did it.   And I want to confess. I have to confess to Patsy.  

	
	

	words on screen 
	2ND VOICE WT

	
	

	6b The secret that surrounds JonBenet’s death is what I speak of.
	The secret that surrounds JonBenet’s death is what I speak of.

	
	

	6c I never meant her to die.   
	I never meant her to die.   

	
	

	Michael Tracey at home sync
	MICHAEL TRACEY SYNC

	
	

	
	As the e-mails unfolded and into 2006 he went into great detail about what happened.   I mean, he basically was offering me a minute by minute explanation of that night.

	
	

	words on computer screen
	2ND VOICE WT

	
	

	6d She was in the vertical position during the asphyxiation ‘ritual’.
	 She was in the vertical position during the asphyxiation ‘ritual’.

	
	

	6f The killer raised the heavy flashlight high and struck down with enormous force.
	The killer raised the heavy flashlight high and struck down with enormous force.

	
	

	6e I must speak to the Ramseys to explain what happened that night.
	I must speak to the Ramseys to explain what happened that night.

	
	

	screen 
	MICHAEL TRACEY V/O

	
	

	
	He was desperate to talk to Patsy

	
	

	Michael Tracey sync
	MICHAEL TRACEY SYNC

	
	

	
	 And I I I put him off.   I, you know, I made all kinds of excuses, including her illness, which was true.   You know, Patsy was dying.   That didn’t seem to concern him that much to be honest.  


	dark Charlevoix establishers
	MICHAEL TRACEY CONT V/O

	
	

	
	And then he said “I’ll be sitting in the living room in Charlevoix before you give me a phone number and an e-mail address for them”.

	
	

	Michael Tracey sync
	MICHAEL TRACEY SYNC

	
	

	
	And I thought, ‘Hmmm I-I chose to interpret that as a threat that he would go and seek them out.

	
	

	darkened shot of Charlevoix house
	COMM

	
	

	
	Fearing whoever was sending the e-mails might be capable of reaching the Ramseys Tracey warned 

	Bryan Morgan arriving in at DA’s office
	their former attorney, Bryan Morgan, for forty years Colorado’s most famous criminal defence lawyer.       

	
	

	
	After seeing the e-mails he sought a meeting with Mary Lacy  the District Attorney.   

	
	

	
	Detectives had been monitoring and advising Tracey throughout – but Morgan now thought the time had come for a proper investigation.   

	
	

	Brian  Morgan sync
	BRYAN MORGAN SYN C

	
	

	
	My judgment after reading the e-mails was that these were detailed confessions of a murder that a responsible prosecutor would feel the need to try to get to the bottom of this.  

	
	

	Justice Centre ext
	COMM

	
	

	
	She did.   Everybody now agreed the time had come for an investigation.

	
	

	Michael Tracey sync
	MICHAEL TRACEY SYNC

	
	

	
	They saw, they saw what I saw.  That there was a possibility that these e-mails were from the guy who killed JonBenét.   They had to see it that way.   It would have been irresponsible not to see it that way.


	Lib:  IT servers 
	COMM

	
	

	
	Investigators discovered the e-mails were being routed through a server in Canada.

	
	

	
	The US State Department, Justice Department and even the Royal Canadian Mounted Police were involved in trying to find who was sending them:      but they failed.     

	
	

	Michael Tracey sync
	MICHAEL TRACY SYNC

	
	

	                                             
	He’d chosen his server extremely well.   One thing I’ve discovered is how difficult it is to find people if they want to disappear. 

	
	

	Lib:  IT servers
	MICHAEL TRACEY V/O

	
	

	
	He chose an e-mail server which basically allows people to be not found.      

	
	 

	
	So the question was, you know, how do you find this person?

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	As a growing team of investigators wrestled with the problem – the e-mails to Tracey became ever more explicit.

	
	

	words on computer screen 
	2ND VOICE WT

	
	

	7aWe must cure ourselves of the word torture.   It was a sexual act.
	We must cure ourselves of the word torture.   It was a sexual act.

	
	

	7b Do you know what it is to crave the blood of a lovely child?   
	Do you know what it is to crave the blood of a lovely child?  

	
	

	7bDo you know what it is to want this so bad yet not want death for her?
	Do you know what it is to want this so bad yet not want death for her?

	
	

	Tracey at computer
	COMM

	
	

	
	The man sending the e-mails now began signing them ‘Daxis’.    Which he said meant ‘Son of the Devil’.      

	
	

	
	MICHAEL TRACEY V/O

	
	

	
	 It was harrowing.   It was horrendous to read this stuff and to pretend that it was all ok.


	Lib:  New Hope Church intro, Show 1 Seg 1
	LIB:   NEW HOPE CHURCH INTRO/SYNC

	
	

	
	Would you please welcome with me John and Patsy Ramsey.    (Clapping)

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	Last Easter Patsy Ramsey was asked, on an religious TV programme in Hawaii, whether she would be able to forgive the killer of her daughter, if he was ever found.

	
	

	Lib:  New Hope Church sync
	LIB:   NEW HOPE CHURCH INTRO/SYNC

	
	

	
	When he stands before you and he’s convicted, will you be able to…?

	
	

	
	We’re all sinners in God’s sight so as a Christian I am obligated to forgive,  but it will be very hard, very hard, but I believe… I have prayed for this person to come forward…

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	 
	Patsy Ramsey would prove to be the key to unmasking the man who claimed to have killed her daughter. 

	
	

	night ext of Tracey home
	WT

	
	

	
	…music…tone announcing new e-mail

	
	

	words on screen
	2ND VOICE WT

	
	

	8aMichael, my face was the last JonBenet saw.   
	Michael, my face was the last JonBenet saw.  

	
	

	8aDoes that not connect me with her mother?
	Does that not connect me with her mother?

	
	

	night ms of Tracey beginning to type
	COMM

	
	

	
	Investigators told Tracey to e-mail Daxis, urging him to telephone Patsy direct.

	
	

	Tracey stops typing
	They told him to suggest that a pay-as-you go mobile or cell phone would be difficult to trace.

	
	

	night ms of Tracey at computer
	WT

	
	

	
	…tone indicating new e-mail…


	words on screen 
	2ND VOICE WT

	
	

	9aI have never heard of an untraceable cell phone.
	I have never heard of an untraceable cell phone.

	
	

	9aWhen it comes to law enforcement, I would not put anything past what they could do to get my identity.
	When it comes to law enforcement, I would not put anything past what they could do to get my identity.

	
	

	Michael Tracey sync
	MICHAEL TRACY SYNC

	
	

	
	He was always suspicious.   He was always cautious.   I mean his whole point was that he was kind of in hiding.   That he would vanish.   And my concern was always that he would vanish.

	
	

	early evening shot of rockies 
	WT

	
	

	
	…efx…

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	A month later though, there was a break through.

	
	

	early evening shot of Tracey home
	WT

	
	

	
	…tone indicating new e-mail…

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	Daxis agreed he would call the Ramseys.

	
	

	words on screen
	2ND VOICE WT

	
	

	10aWe must connect before we lose JonBenet’s mother to death.    Please help me do this.
	We must connect before we lose JonBenet’s mother to death.    Please help me do this.

	
	

	Atlanta gvs
	COMM

	
	

	
	John and Patsy were now living with Patsy’s parents in Atlanta, where her cancer was being treated.

	
	Local police, mindful of Patsy’s health, did not want her to talk to Daxis.    They installed an answer phone and a new telephone line. 

	
	

	
	JOHN RAMSEY V/O

	
	

	
	But we wanted it to appear


	John Ramsey cont sync
	JOHN RAMSEY CONT SYNC

	
	

	
	as if it were our home number.   So we recorded a a just kind of a very innocent voice mail that said you know, ‘if you’re calling for Patsy, press one.   If you’re calling for for John, press two.   If you’re calling for her parents, press three.

	
	

	cu’s of telephone exchange 
	WT

	
	

	
	telephone efx

	
	

	               
	COMM

	
	

	
	Calls were made but the caller always rang off after hearing the answer phone message.    The calls were too short to be traced. 

	
	

	
	But it led to a break through.   Daxis used a pay as you go mobile phone to make the calls and decided it was anonymous enough to risk letting Tracey call him on it.

	
	

	night exterior of Tracey home
	WT

	
	

	
	…tone indicating new e-mail…

	
	

	words on computer screen
	2ND VOICE

	
	

	11aWould you like to hear my voice?   
	Would you like to hear my voice?  

	
	

	I1a Its nothing special but it was the last voice JonBenet heard.
	It’s nothing special but it was the last voice JonBenet heard.

	                                                               fd up music
	

	
	

	CU University ext
	WT 

	
	

	University office sequence set up
	…music…

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	A few days later, surrounded by detectives, Tracey made the first call from his office at the University of Colorado. 

	
	

	
	It was to be the first of eleven calls – all made at times set by Daxis.   


	phone call reconstruction sync
	TELEPHONE RECONSTRUCTION SYNC

	cu of Tracey’s fingers punching in number
	

	
	…dialling tone…

	
	

	
	Daxis.

Is that Daxis.

Yes it is.

Daxis.   This is Mike Tracey.

Hi Michael.

How are you?
I’m not so good.   How are you?
Why you not so good.

	
	 I may hang up on you.

	
	I must admit I was a bit surprised when you sent the phone number.    Why did you do that by the way?.

I’ve lost my senses.

You’ve lost your senses.

I think, I think, I’m just suicidal.

Suicidal.

I think that’s what it is.

That’s not a good thing.    What brought that on?

I don’t know, I don’t know.   Its just been going on for so long.

Well it’s been ten years.

Yes.   I can’t take it.    I can’t take it any longer.

	
	

	telephone call reconstruction cont.
	COMM

	
	

	
	The man talked for 71 minutes.

	
	

	phone call reconstruction sync
	TELEPHONE RECONSTRUCTION SYNC

	
	

	
	I’ve had experience with going into girls houses and getting them and having them come to me and that little girl I told you about she was 12 years old before she would come to me, I didn’t go into to her house I just went to her house and waited outside.    And she would just come to me and I wasn’t afraid, I mean I was afraid, it was exciting, and exhilarating.   I knew I could be caught.   You would not believe parents sleep through everything.     

	
	

	central Bangkok.
	COMM

	
	

	 
	The call was traced to this small area of central Bangkok.     From here, Daxis again spoke of his desperation to talk to Patsy Ramsey.

	
	

	Bangkok
	TELEPHONE CALL WT

	
	

	
	I just cannot, I just can’t fathom, you know, I called that machine last night… And it was John Ramsey’s voice. So obviously John Ramsey’s voice…

	
	

	mix through to hospital 
	WT

	
	

	
	.efx…distant siren…?

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	By this point – early last June – Patsy Ramsey was very ill.    Her treatment in Atlanta was failing.

	
	

	
	Investigators suggested Tracey should pass on news about her condition in the next scheduled call.

	
	

	phone call reconstruction sync
	TELEPHONE TRUCTION SYNC

	
	

	
	Daxis this is Mike Tracey.   Daxis, there’s some really bad news   There’s some really bad news.

What’s the bad news.   Patsy died.   She died about 3.30 am.  East  Coast, Atlanta time.  
That’s horrible.   Oh my God.    Why did, why could I not talk to her, why. Why.   Why.   Nobody would let me talk to her.   This is so horrible, you don’t realise this is so horrible.    I can never connect with that Mam, ever.  I can never connect with her, never.    I  can never hear her say she forgives me.   
Why didn’t I tell you four years go.     I couldn’t go to her.   I couldn’t go to her, I would be in a 5 by 9 cell  if I had done that.   I couldn’t do it.   I couldn’t do it.  I couldn’t do that.

	
	

	Atlanta church 
	COMM

	
	

	
	Patsy Ramsey’s funeral service took place in Atlanta at the end of June.

	
	

	
	JOHN RAMSEY V/O 

	
	

	
	I only saw Patsy cry twice.   Once when she was first diagnosed,  because she knew that was really very serious.

	
	

	John Ramsey sync
	JOHN RAMSEY SYNC

	
	

	
	 And she cried just before she died, when she realized that she wasn’t gonna make it.   And I think she was afraid and didn’t wanna leave.   And but other than that, I never saw her cry.

	Rostrom:    Patsy still in house in hat
	

	  
	JOHN RAMSEY V/O

	
	

	
	She was incredibly full of life.


	John Ramsey cont sync
	JOHN RAMSEY CONT SYNC

	
	

	
	 I’ve never known anyone like her.   Very positive  Never heard her say a negative thing about anyone.   Just… she was an amazing person.

	
	

	Atlanta cemetery
	ATLANTA  CEMETARY WT

	
	

	
	…efx

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	Patsy Ramsey was buried next to her murdered daughter.     As she was buried efforts to find the man in Bangkok were to take an extraordinary turn.

	End of Part 2
	

	Part 3
	

	
	

	call area of Bangkok sync 
	CALL AREA IN BANGKOK SYNC

	
	

	
	…sync efx…

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	As Patsy Ramsey was buried last June, efforts to find the man in Bangkok claiming to have killed her daughter had stalled.

	
	

	
	The phone trace was close, but not close enough.    This area of Bangkok is just too densely populated.

	
	

	
	And everything became more urgent when in a further phone call Daxis gave a detailed description of how, he said, he had killed JonBenét.

	
	

	telephone recon/Bagnkok
	PHONE CALL 7 WT

	
	

	
	And I just kept holding the pressure because I was just in a trance…

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	Although some of the details were unexpected – the claims were consistent with all the known evidence.   

	
	

	
	He said he had a large torch with him.


	phone call 7 recon.
	 PHONE CALL 7 RECONSTRUCTION + WT

	
	

	
	 There was tape wrapped around the flashlight.   And I took a piece of that tape off that flashlight and I covered her mouth with it.   I can’t explain that, it’s insanity.   It’s crazy.   It’s, I’m crazy.

	
	

	
	 So I just, so I drew back the flashlight and I, I knew I had to strike with a force that was so intense…

	track of area of Bangkok Karr made phone calls
	

	
	It’s so horrible Michael.   There’s nothing more horrible than this.   There’s nothing more horrible, my God you can’t imagine.   (Crying).

	
	

	inter-cut rotating tape wheels
	MICHAEL TRACEY V/O

	
	

	
	That  was something that was appalling to listen to.

	
	

	Michael Tracey sync
	MICHAEL TRACEY SYNC

	
	

	
	And that kind of lit a fire.  The other thing that lit a fire under the investigation, perhaps even more so in Bangkok 

	
	

	area of Bankok calls coming from
	MICHAEL TRACEY V /0

	
	

	
	was  he told me that he’d got a job as a second grade teacher

	
	

	Michael Tracey cont sync
	MICHAEL TRACEY CONT  SYNC

	
	

	
	and he mentioned  the names of specific young girls he’d seen when he was getting the job and he was telling me  how excited he was about this and he named one little girl in particular.  

	
	

	Bangkok sync
	BANGKOK SYNC

	
	

	
	…sync efx…

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	Federal agents from the US Embassy in Bangkok had little doubt that they were hunting an active and dangerous paedophile.   

	
	

	
	They visited many of the numerous international schools here, trying to locate which one Daxis might be referring to. 

	
	

	
	Gary Phillips – a senior agent from US Homeland Security – was one of those involved.   None of them has spoken about it publicly before.       

	Gary Phillips sync
	GARY PHILLIPS SYNC

	
	

	
	There were several little girls that he had mentioned in the e-mails.   We were desperately trying to locate those little girls.   We were desperately trying to locate the school that he was describing in those e-mails.

	
	

	early evening ext of Tracey home
	WT

	
	

	
	…tone announcing arrival of new e-mail…

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	The final break through in finding Daxis came in July.     

	
	

	early evening fingers on keyboard cuing mail
	FINGERS ON KEYBOARD SYNC 

	
	efx

	
	

	words on screen 
	2ND VOICE WT

	
	

	12aThere is a photo of JonBenet standing beside her mother on Christmas morning 1996. 
	There is a photo of JonBenet standing beside her mother on Christmas morning 1996. 

	
	

	12b It was the last photo taken of JonBenet alive.  It was featured in your documentary.   
	It was the last photo taken of JonBenet alive.  It was featured in your documentary.   

	
	

	Rostrom:   Last photograph of JonBenét
	COMM

	
	

	
	Daxis asked Tracey to e-mail him a copy:   but a detective suggested he should offer to send the actual photograph.

	
	

	Michael Tracey interview 3 sync 
	MICHAEL TRACEY SYNC

	
	

	
	And that was a brilliant idea, intriguing idea.   And so we, I e-mailed,

	
	

	early evening  hands typing
	MICHAEL TRACEY CONT V/O

	
	

	
	and said  why don’t you have the original photo, rather than have it scanned?

	
	I said  this photo was given to me personally by Patsy:  so  she’s kind of metaphorically and literally present

	
	

	Michael Tracey  cont sync 
	MICHAEL TRACEY CONT SYNC

	
	

	
	‘cause of her fingerprints being on the photo and so on.   It was and it is, a beautiful photo.   And I said, ‘I really think you should have it.’    And he welcomed that idea.

	
	

	UPI postal box location Bangkok
	COMM

	
	

	
	Daxis gave Tracey the address of an anonymous post box in the corner of a Bangkok shopping centre.

	
	

	
	The picture was sent in a large envelope and two days later the man in the red shirt on this CCTV footage was watched as he picked it up.   

	rostrom:  stills 
	

	
	He was photographed as he left the shopping centre and followed to this

	Blooms hotel establisher
	cheap hotel nearby.   Rooms here cost £6 a night

	
	

	
	GARY PHILLIPS V/O

	
	

	
	He got into the elevator and our agent

	
	

	Gary Phillips sync
	GARY PHILLIPS SYNC

	
	

	
	got into the elevator before him and held the elevator for him.   And he pressed the ninth floor. 

	
	

	surveillance photographs
	COMM

	
	

	
	The surveillance photographs were e-mailed to the US and shown to John Ramsey:   but he did not recognize the man. 

	
	

	John Ramsey cont sync
	JOHN RAMSEY CONT SYNC

	
	

	
	While I’d hoped I could help by saying ‘Oh yes, that person was someone we recognized’ I couldn’t.   And so, it wasn’t terribly disappointing either, because I don’t think I knew, I don’t know anybody that evil.   I would hope not.

	
	

	Blooms hotel
	COMM

	
	

	
	The man followed back to this hotel was kept under constant surveillance.

	
	

	
	GARY PHILLIPS V/O

	
	

	
	Every 15 minutes  we had

	
	

	Gary Phillips sync
	GARY PHILLIPS SYNC

	
	

	
	an agent or investigator walk around the floor to see if we could spot him. We had vehicles positioned all around the hotel and the exits, and we also had agents in the lobby to see when he came down.

	
	

	
	


	hotel corridor
	COMM

	
	

	
	A detective from Boulder arrived and moved into a room across the corridor. 

	pan from one door on corridor to cu of 927
	

	
	He listened at the man’s door when Tracey next called and discovered he was indeed Daxis.

	360 degree pan around room showing lap top/desk
	

	
	A passport check by the Thai police identified the man – who rarely left his room – as John Mark Karr:     an American wanted in the US on child pornography charges.

	
	

	lib: DNA testing                                    

	A sample of his DNA was taken surreptitiously from the sweat on the handlebars of a bicycle he used, but it was rejected by US technicians who said only a full mouth swab would be sufficient.

	
	

	Blooms hotel room/lap top                              
	But time was running out.   A new school term was about to begin and Karr’s e-mails were ever more explicit.  US Homeland Security agents were alarmed. 

	
	

	Blooms hotel room/lap top
	ANN HURST V/O

	
	

	
	In the e-mails he talked about several children

	
	

	Ann Hurst sync
	ANN HURST SYNC

	
	

	 Super:   Ann Hurst
                Attaché 
                US Embassy, Bangkok


	and his desire to have sex with those children.   In fact, he was quite explicit about one little girl that reminded him of BonBenét Ramsey. He had already started grooming her, to sexually exploit her.  And he had had done several overt acts with her.  For example he had told her: Don’t tell your Mommy, I’m talking to you. Lets keep this our secret.’   

	
	

	cu of  e-mail  
	ANN HURST V/O

	
	

	I massaged her little foot
	He had described how he had massaged her feet underneath the table in the cafeteria.   

	
	

	Ann Hurst sync
	ANN HURST SYNC

	
	

	
	He said that when he was massaging her feet 

	
	

	cu of e-mail
	ANN HURST V/O

	
	

	It was almost like feeling her naked body sliding up next to me.
	they were nude and they reminded him of what it would feel like to have her nude body sliding up against him.  


	Ann Hurst sync
	ANN HURST SYNC

	
	

	
	Now this is a five year old child that he is talking about.  He also made the statement about this little girl that when he took her hands in his wrist they reminded him of JonBenét’s hands and wrist   

	
	and how he had tied those together.  And so he took this little girl and squeezed her wrists tightly.    So we were very worried.

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	But still, investigators did not really know whether the children or even the school were real.      

	
	

	
	So on the first day of term – August 14th – Karr was followed as he left the hotel on a bicycle.

	
	

	
	Gary Phillips was in charge.

	
	

	recon:  Karr cycling off/following
	GARY PHILLIPS V/O

	
	

	
	Our entire team in cars and a taxi and on a motorcycle taxi followed him.

	
	

	
	and then he made a left hand turn going

	
	

	
	going the opposite way across traffic and we literally had to jump out of the car and run after him.

	
	

	recon:  legs out of car/running sync
	RECON:  OUT OF CAR/RUNNING SYNC

	
	

	
	…reconstruction…

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	The investigator from the Boulder DA’s office joined Phillips.  The two Americans chased Karr for almost a mile.           

	
	They just managed to keep him in sight until he disappeared

	wide shot of school                                       
	into the New Sathon International School in the centre of Bangkok.

	
	

	
	His classroom, at the front of the school facing the street, was just as he had described it, to Tracey.    

	recon of school surveillance on 15th
	

	
	He was kept under surveillance that day and the next.    What he was seen doing, horrified those watching.        


	Gary Phillips sync
	GARY PHILLIPS SYNC

	
	

	
	During the surveillance our agents observed at one point a little girl sitting on Karr’s lap which,    

	
	

	Surveillance seq at school
	GARY PHILLIPS V/O

	
	

	
	to us, became very concerning.

	
	

	
	ANN HURST V/O

	
	

	
	And then another teacher came into the classroom 

	
	

	Ann Hurst sync
	ANN HURST SYNC

	
	

	
	he became very upset at that teacher.   Told her that she had no right to be in his classroom and ordered her out of the classroom, at the same time quickly shoving this little child off of his lap.

	
	

	surveillance seq at school
	COMM

	
	

	
	Investigators wanted time to put together a proper case against Karr – but a forensic psychologist said he thought the children Karr was teaching were in immediate danger.

	
	

	
	ANN HURST V/O

	
	

	
	We were actually under a great deal of pressure.   It was a balancing act.

	
	

	Ann Hurst sync
	ANN HURST SYNC

	
	

	                                                        
	We had to arrest him before he molested another child.

	
	

	recon of arrest at lodging house 
	COMM

	
	

	
	On the second day – August 15th – Karr  was followed back to his hotel and arrested.

	
	

	Gary Phillips sync
	GARY PHILLIPS SYNC

	
	

	
	So we knocked on the door.   He was a  bit hesitant at opening the door but he eventually did open the door.   The Royal Thai Police arrested him.    

	
	


	room
	GARRY PHILIPS V/O

	
	

	
	He knew the gig was up essentially.

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	By the door they found a packed suitcase.    As he had claimed, he could have disappeared in seconds.

	
	

	
	JOHN RAMSEY V/O

	
	

	
	this person did not wanna get caught.  

	
	

	John Ramsey cont sync
	JOHN RAMSEY CONT SYNC

	
	

	
	He went to extraordinary measures to keep his identity and his whereabouts secret.

	
	

	Lib:  Karr arrest press conference
	JOHN RAMSEY V/O

	
	

	
	The fact that they found him was a huge accomplishment and an amazing feat.

	
	

	
	He was very afraid of the death penalty.

	
	

	John Ramsey cont sync
	JOHN RAMSEY CONT SYNC

	
	

	
	So everything that was being discussed was, very, made him more and more legitimate, at least in my eyes, even though you know, we still didn’t know.

	
	

	Lib:  Karr arrest press conference sync
	LIB:   KARR ARREST PRESS CONF SYNC

	
	

	
	…I loved JonBenét,  she died accidentally….

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	The Thai police paraded Karr before the media.

	
	

	
	Behind the scenes though, Karr had refused to give a sample of DNA – so for legal reasons, this would have to wait until he was back in the US.

	
	

	
	But in the meantime everything investigators found out about him confirmed their fears.   

	Bangkok school
	He had indeed targeted children at the school, just as he had claimed.

	
	

	
	ANN HURST V/O

	
	

	
	The story the children told was exactly the same story that John Mark Karr had written in his emails.       

	
	

	Ann Hurst sync
	ANN HURST  SYNC

	
	

	
	Did he ever do anything with him.   Yes, he massaged my feet underneath the table at the cafeteria.    He told me not to tell my mommy that he was talking to me.   He also told me:  ‘Oh, lets keep it a secret.

	
	

	Bangkok detention centre
	COMM

	
	

	
	While arrangements were being made to return Karr to the US, he was kept in the immigration detention centre in Bangkok.

	
	

	
	Investigators spent over 30 hours here interrogating him.    His story never changed.

	
	

	Gary Philips sync
	GARY PHILIPS SYNC

	
	

	
	The gist of his conversation to us in the course of many, many, many hours was, he was definitely the killer of JonBenét Ramsey. 

	
	

	Ann Hurst sync
	ANN HURST SYNC

	
	

	
	He was very calm at moments and then at other moments, he was very agitated.   He was a person that could go from hot to cold in five seconds.

	
	

	Gary Philips sync
	GARY PHILIPS SYNC

	
	

	
	He did not want to plead to first degree murder.   He wanted to plead to second degree murder because it was an accident he said.

	
	

	Ann Hurst sync
	ANN HURST SYNC

	
	

	
	He was aware that premeditated murder, first degree murder, carries a possible penalty of the death penalty in Colorado, and he did not want to face the death penalty.  

	
	

	Gary Philips sync
	GARY PHILIPS SYNC

	
	

	
	We said:  ‘Well show us.  Show us what you did’.   And he, what he did is, I gave him a water bottle.   And he took the water bottle, he g and he, it it led up to this.   And he said:  ‘Well, I don’t know which angle I hit her at.   And I don’t know how I did it.   And I don’t know, you know, how hard I did it.   But I grabbed the flashlight with all my might, and I hit her head like that.   And it was act of mercy.   I didn’t want her in a vegetative state.   So that’s why he smashed her head in.

	
	

	Ann Hurst sync
	ANN HURST SYNC

	
	

	
	From one day to the next day, the story wouldn’t change.   It was exactly the same every time we interviewed him.   And due to those facts, we felt that he was the prime suspect in the case.

	
	


	Alabama gvs                                         
	WT

	
	

	
	…music…

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	Back in the US, investigators checking Karr’s background, turned their attention to the remote area of Alabama where he had grown up.   

	
	

	
	Here too, they were able to confirm much of what he had said.

	
	

	ws of abandoned house where Karr                 
brought up by grandmother
	Karr was brought up in this house by his grandmother and took it over when she died.  

	
	

	
	It has remained shuttered and abandoned since he  left it

	
	

	
	But former class mates remember the disturbed child who grew up here.

	rostrom:  ws of Karr – Year Book
	

	
	TERESA ALLIGOOD V/O

	
	

	
	 He was a very strange person.

	
	Most people  they’re into 

	
	

	Teresa Alligood cont sync
	TERESSA ALLIGOOD CONT SYNC

	
	

	
	hang’in out with friends.    He wasn’t like that.   I mean he, he just had a completely different personality.   It was almost like a holier than thou, I don’t need to have all this.   I have what I need”.

	
	

	rostrom:  ws of Karr – Year Book
	ALICIA NORTHAM  V/O

	
	

	
	Very aloof;   a loner by choice.

	
	

	Alicia Northam sync
	ALICIA NORTHAM SYNC

	
	

	
	Always off in search of his own theory, that was going to raise him up above everyone else and prove that he could tap into the part of our brains that we don’t use.


	Atlanta gvs 
	COMM

	
	

	
	Karr claimed to Tracey that he had lived close to the Ramseys in Atlanta.     This proved to be true.

	
	

	father’s Atlanta home                                       
	It was found he had often visited his father’s home here which is close to where the Ramsey’s had lived  before moving to Boulder.

	
	

	Alabama gvs
	WT

	
	

	
	music…efx

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	Another remarkable claim Karr had made to Tracey, also proved to be true.

	
	

	
	He had indeed abducted a 12-year-old from her home at night while her parents slept.

	mid shots of abandoned Karr house
	

	
	He later married the girl and brought her back to his grandmother’s home.   She was then thirteen.   He was nineteen.   Alabama allows such marriages.

	
	

	Rostrom (ABC) still of Quientana Ray on show
	The girl, Quientana, later described on television the bizarre life she led here.   Karr controlled everything she did.   The marriage lasted only a few months.   In filing for divorce, she said she feared for her life.

	Teresa Alligood house, South Carolina 
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	Yet it is what was discovered here in the South Carolina home of his former class mate Teresa Alligood which caught everyone’s attention.

	
	

	Teresa Alligood opening safe sync
	TERESA ALLIGOOD OPENING SAFE SYNC

	
	

	
	…sync efx..

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	Teresa Alligood pulling out year book           
	After she heard about Karr’s arrest, Teresa Alligood looked up the entry he had made in her Year Book:  which class mates sign each summer.   

	
	What she found explains why the Year Book is now kept in the family gun safe.

	
	

	
	TERESA ALLIGOOD V/O

	
	

	
	Most people that sign yearbooks are ganna say:


	Teresa Alligood sync
	TERESA ALLIGOOD CONT SYNC

	
	

	
	‘Great knowing you in school. Have a great summer’.See ya next year..

	
	

	Rostrom:  cu of Year Book entry
	TERESA ALLIGOOD V/O

	
	

	
	Not a whole page on how great a person you are.

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	But it was when she compared Karr’s entry in her ‘Year Book’ with the bizarre ransom note left at the Ramsey home that she was really taken aback.

	
	

	
	In America there has been huge debate about the meaning of the ransom note:      it features on dozens of web sites.

	
	

	
	She found – as investigators had already found – that Karr’s writing is similar to that in the note.

	
	

	
	But it was what she discovered when she compared the end of the ransom note with the end of her year book entry, that made her contact investigators. 

	Rostrom:  comparison with ransom note
	

	
	The ransom note finishes with the word ‘Victory’ followed, mysteriously, by the capitals:   ‘SBTC’.

	Rostrom:  add end of Year Book 
	

	
	Karr’s entry in her Year Book ended with the words, in capitals:  ‘I Shall Be The Conqueror’ and live in peace.     

	
	

	Teresa Alligood sync
	TERESA ALLIGOOD SYNC

	
	

	                                                      
	And I’m thinking to myself, it, it just immediately clicked.   And I said ‘SBTC’:  Shall Be the Conquer.   

	
	

	Rostrom:  cu of Year Book entry
	TERESA ALLIGOOD V/O

	
	

	
	And it was just too much of a coincidence.

	
	

	Rostrom seq 1:  comparison of writing in year book/ransom note                                         
	COMM

	
	Everything investigators discovered appeared to point to Karr’s guilt:  yet nothing was conclusive.       

	Rostrom seq 2:  headlines/reporting               

evidence
	Nevertheless all the evidence was being exposed in the US media:   which was to give the story an unexpected twist.   

	Lib:Karr being brought back to US
	

	                                                    fd up music


	

	Commercial break 3
	

	Part 4
	

	Bangkok gv’s
	WT

	
	

	
	efx…music…

	
	

	Lib:Karr arrest press conference
	LIB:   KARR ARREST PRESS CONF SYNC

	
	

	
	I was with JonBenét when she died.

	
	

	
	COMM 

	
	

	
	At the time of John Karr’s arrest – no one knew whether he was guilty of the Ramsey murder or merely disturbed and delusional. 

	
	

	Rostrom seq 3:  Headlines:         ‘Solved’    
	Yet in the US headlines screamed that the case had been solved and the killer found.

	                                                     Sicko…
	His confession was taken at face value and his guilt assumed.   

	
	On television the question of his guilt was the subject of constant speculation..   

	        
	

	                                                                            
	One man who was not impressed by any of this was John Ramsey.    He saw echoes of what he had suffered – trial in the media – now happening to Karr.  

	
	

	
	JOHN RAMSEY V/O

	
	

	                                               
	 It was horrible 


	John Ramsey sync
	JOHN RAMSY SYNC

	
	

	
	even though I had hoped that this was finally the guy we’ve been looking for.    It was not appropriate to convict in the court of public opinion immediately on the six o’clock news – without going through the full judicial process. And its just wrong that we do that in this country And most civilized countries don’t do that. 

	
	

	Lib:   first Lacy press conference
	LIB:  FIRST LACY PRESS CONFERENCE SYNC

	
	

	
	I’m asking you this morning, let us do our job thoroughly and carefully...

	
	

	Lib:   first Lacy press conference
	COMM

	
	

	
	Boulder District Attorney Mary Lacy shared John Ramsey’s concern.    She feared that if she did have to prosecute Karr – the media coverage would make it very difficult to give him a fair trial.   

	
	

	Lib:  Mary Lacy press conference sync
	LIB: MARY LACY SYNC

	
	

	
	There is a  lot of speculation and a desire for quick answers.   Let me quote John Ramsey poignant plea yesterday… ‘Do not jump to conclusions, Do not jump to judgement.   

	
	

	Lib:  Karr on plane
	LIB: (BTV)  MARY LACY V/O

	
	

	
	Do not speculate. Let the justice system take its course.

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	John Karr had refused to give a DNA sample in Bangkok – so it was only when he was finally brought back to America – and a search warrant issued – that his DNA could be taken and compared with that left by JonBenét’s killer.

	
	

	Rostrom:   DNA test clears Karr
	WT

	                  Case Crashes
	

	
	…music…

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	It did not match.   Despite his confession, there was nothing to tie him to the crime scene.      

	Lib:  2nd Lacy press conference        
	

	
	Mary Lacy had no option but to drop the Ramsey murder charges against him.   

	Lib:  2nd Lacy press conference
	LIB: 2nd  LACY PRESS CONFERENCE SYNC

	
	

	
	…John Karr inserted himself into this so I don’t have a great deal of sympathy for John Karr…

	
	

	Lib:  Karr onto plane
	COMM

	
	

	
	As Karr was returned to California to face outstanding child pornography charges – much of the US media now turned on Mary Lacy condemning her investigation as an expensive farce.

	
	

	Lib:  radio masts/cams-cables  from first doc
	LIB WT (FDEALING)BOYLES RADIO SHOW 

	Peter Boyles
	

	KHOW  Denver                               
	Why can’t Mary Tracey Lacy and Michael Tracey Lacy… they set this fire, why can’t they have to pay for it.

	
	

	Lib:  TV attack on DA sync
	LIB:  ATTACKS ON DA SYNC

	CNN Paula Zahn Live
	

	
	…plus champagne and chardonnay, the suspects 
free flight home… 

	
	

	
	JOHN RAMSEY V/O

	
	

	
	Mary Lacy was ridiculed and made fun of 

	
	

	John Ramsey sync
	JOHN RAMSEY SYNC

	
	

	
	And that that was sad.   It was just sad.   Because she did the right thing and was horribly criticized for that.   And it just showed me that the people doing the criticizing had no perspective of what should be done in that situation.

	
	

	Lou Smit sync
	LOU SMIT SYNC

	
	

	
	 She may have gone fishing for a  shark in John 

Karr, and she came up with a barracuda.  But that’s
 what happens many times in an investigation. 


	Lib:  TV attack on DA
	LIB:  ATTACKS ON DA SYNC

	CNN (Paula Zahn)
	

	
	I think when you are a prosecutor thinking about going forward with a case like this you not  only have to consider the credibility of your confession but also  you have to disprove that the Ramseys didn’t do it… 

	
	

	
	COMM

	
	

	
	Much of the criticism of Mary Lacy, came from journalists and others who had been part of the media campaign against the Ramseys.     From the outset, they used the Karr episode to renew the attack on the family.

	
	

	Lib:  Tucker Show sync
	LIB:  TUCKER SHOW SYNC

	MNBC Tucker
	

	
	How likely is it that someone was able to  break into this expensive home take JB out of her room undetected, take her down stairs undetected, tie her up in this elaborate way that they did  undetected, after sexually assaulting her, undetected…

	
	

	Lib:  Tucker Show sync
	LIB:  TUCKER SHOW SYNC

	MNBC Tucker                 
	

	
	Somebody put a lot of energy into making this look like a stranger broke in and killed the child and guess what,  if it was a stranger they wouldn’t have to stage it to make it look like a stranger.

	
	

	
	JOHN RAMSEY V/O

	
	

	
	 we were  charged and tried and convicted in the media

	
	

	John Ramsey sync
	JOHN RAMSEY SYNC

	
	

	
	as child murderers and  that’s a horrible conviction.   And yet we were never afforded the proper processes that our guaranteed by our Constitution.    So we’ve allowed the media to take over our justice system when they so choose to do so and convict people.   


	Rostrom:  Karr in Court 
	COMM

	
	

	
	In a further embarrassment for US justice the child pornography charges against Karr had to be dropped when it was discovered local police in California had lost the evidence.     .

	
	

	Rostrom:  Karr leaving Court             

in blue shirt
	Prosecutors were forced to release him    

	
	

	
	But in an extraordinary new development – Federal Agents have told Channel 4 they still believed that Karr could have been involved in the Ramsey murder – and that they are renewing the investigation.    They have fresh leads on him.      

	
	

	
	GARY PHILLIPS V/O

	
	

	
	As far as the killing of JonBenét Ramsey

	
	

	
	he is a person of interest

	
	

	Gary Phillips sync
	GARY PHILLIPS SYNC

	
	

	
	because he’s all along said that he didn’t act alone.   So even though he may have not been physically there, he may have orchestrated something with another person.     We just don’t know  until we can gather sufficient evidence.

	
	

	Hamilton gvs
	COMM

	.
	

	
	One of the new leads being followed up involves a man from Alabama where Karr grew up.    

	
	

	
	He has just been arrested in Australia and faces extradition back to Karr’s home town, Hamilton, on charges of rape, sexual torture and sodomy on a child here.  

	
	

	pull back from house with red roof                

to Karr’s home
	This was where he lived.   It is just across the road from Karr’s old home.    The man in Australia was his closest neighbour.    The two knew each other.    

	
	

	
	And they were both in Australia, at the same time before Karr moved to Bangkok.    

	
	

	
	ANN HURST V/O

	
	

	
	John Mark Karr remains a person of interest in the JonBenét case.


	Ann Hurst sync
	ANN HURST SYNC

	
	

	
	We still have leads to follow up on him and we will continue the investigation on him until all of those leads are fully developed and followed up on.

	
	

	Lib:  John Karr on US TV
	COMM 

	Keith Ablow Show
	

	
	Yet Karr is a free man.   His passport has been returned.

	
	

	
	LIB:  JOHN KARR ON US TV SYNC

	
	

	
	Where were you…?  …I don’t want to answer that…Why?I said I can’t answer that, there you go again, you’re trying to lock me in, it would also lock me into talking about the actual schools…

	
	

	Rostrom:   Karr
	COMM

	
	

	
	In a cruel twist TV shows now interview him because of the notoriety he has gained from the Ramsey case: occasionally putting him on the spot.

	
	

	John Ramsey sitting on bench
	COMM

	
	

	
	John Ramsey – at the end of an extraordinary year – is living alone in Michigan, surrounded by ghosts.

	mix to 
	

	Lib:  home video of boat sync 
	LIB:  HOME VIDEO OF BOAT SYNC

	
	

	
	…efx..

	mix back to
	

	John Ramsey sitting on bench
	COMM

	
	

	
	Many Americans still think him guilty:   because this is what they have been told, so often, by the media.

	
	

	Ends.
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